
 

 

Appointments 
Committee 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillor Hamida Ali (Chair) 

Councillor Stuart King (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillors Jason Cummings, Ola Kolade, Joy Prince and Callton Young 

 
 
 
A meeting of the Appointments Committee which you are hereby summoned to 
attend, will be held on Thursday, 17 February 2022 at 5.30 pm in Room 1.01 and 
1.02 - Bernard Weatherill House, Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA  
 
 
JOHN JONES 
Monitoring Officer 
London Borough of Croydon 
Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

Stephen Rowan 
Stephen.Rowan@croydon.gov.uk 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
Wednesday, 9 February 2022 

 
 
The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings  
 
If you require any assistance, please contact Meeting Contact as detailed above.  
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

AGENDA – PART A 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive any apologies for absence from members of the Committee 
 

2.   Disclosure of Interest  

 Members and co-opted Members of the Council are reminded that, in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, they are required to consider in advance 
of each meeting whether they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI), an other registrable interest (ORI) or a non-registrable interest 
(NRI) in relation to any matter on the agenda. If advice is needed, 
Members should contact the Monitoring Officer in good time before the 
meeting. 
  
If any Member or co-opted Member of the Council identifies a DPI or 
ORI which they have not already registered on the Council’s register of 
interests or which requires updating, they should complete the 
disclosure form which can be obtained from Democratic Services at any 
time, copies of which will be available at the meeting for return to the 
Monitoring Officer. 
  
Members and co-opted Members are required to disclose any DPIs and 
ORIs at the meeting. 
-      Where the matter relates to a DPI they may not participate in any 

discussion or vote on the matter and must not stay in the meeting 
unless granted a dispensation. 

-      Where the matter relates to an ORI they may not vote on the matter 
unless granted a dispensation. 

-      Where a Member or co-opted Member has an NRI which directly 
relates to their financial interest or wellbeing, or that of a relative or 
close associate, they must disclose the interest at the meeting, may 
not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not 
stay in the meeting unless granted a dispensation. Where a matter 
affects the NRI of a Member or co-opted Member, section 9 of 
Appendix B of the Code of Conduct sets out the test which must be 
applied by the Member to decide whether disclosure is required. 

  
The Chair will invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 2, to be recorded in the minutes. 
 

3.   Urgent Business (if any)  

 To receive notice from the Chair of any business not on the Agenda 
which should, in the opinion of the Chair, by reason of special 
circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

  



 

 

4.   Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 (Pages 5 - 34) 

 To consider the draft pay policy statement 2022/23 for recommendation 
to full Council for adoption. 
 

5.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting: 
 
“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.” 
 

6.   Extension of Temporary Chief Officer Appointments  

 To consider a report seeking approval to extend a number of interim 
Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer arrangements. 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
REPORT TO: Appointments Committee 

17 February 2022     

SUBJECT: Croydon Pay Policy 2022/23 

LEAD OFFICER: Elaine Jackson - Interim Assistant Chief Executive 
Dean Shoesmith - Interim Chief People Officer  

CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Callton Young – Cabinet Member for Resources and 
Financial Givernance 

WARDS: All 

COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2020-2024 
• We will live within our means, balance the books and provide value for money 

for our residents,including the pay for senior managers which has been 
benchmarked and independently evaluated 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The salaries set out with the annual pay policy statement are budgeted for year 
2022/23. 

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: Not a Key Decision. 
 
 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Committee is recommended to consider the annual pay policy statement 
for 2022/23 and recommend its adoption to Full Council. 

If the  
 
 
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
2.1 In accordance with paragraph 2.1 (4) of Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) of 

the Council’s Constitution, the Appointments Committee is responsible for 
consideration and recommendation to Full Council of the Pay Policy Statement. 

 
2.2 The Council aims to ensure that its remuneration packages are fair, equitable 

and transparent and offer suitable reward for the employment of high quality 
staff with the necessary skills and experience to deliver high quality services. 
The annual pay policy report is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011. The 
report attached, Croydon Annual Pay Policy statement 2022/2023 enables the 
Council to fulfil this requirement.  

 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



  

3. DETAIL  
 
3.1 The detail is attached in the Croydon Pay Policy statement 2022/ 2023 report 

including detailed appendices relating to pay structure, pay and grading, car 
allowance and mileage rates, relocation scheme, and the early retirement and 
redundancy scheme.   

 
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 This report is a statement of fact regarding the pay of senior stff in the council. 

Senior pay  is carefully consulted on with lead members. 
 
 
5 PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY 
 
5.1 The report has not been on the Scrutiny Committee agenda 
 
 
6 FINANCIAL AND RISK ASSESSMENT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1 All salaries are accounted for in the 2022/23 budget and beyond this there are 

no financial considerations arising from a report. 
 
 
7. LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
7.1 The 2022/23 Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy relating to the 

pay of its workforce (excluding school-based employees) as required under the 
Localism Act 2011.  The Localism Act requires the Council to have considered, 
approved and published a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.   
 

7.2 Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the 
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the 
authority thinks fit”.   In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act, this 
Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy for 2022/23 on: 
• The remuneration of its senior staff designated  Chief Officers 
• The remuneration of its lowest paid employees 
• The relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and the 

remuneration of staff who are not Chief Officers 
 
 
8. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT  
 
8.1 The human resource impacts are included in the amin body of the pay policy 

statement 2022/23 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



  

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT   
 
9.1 The Council will continue to monitor carefully equalities issues associated with 

pay, including the pay ratio, gender pay gap, ethnicity pay gap, and disability 
pay gap. New appointments to senior roles will be reviewed, including the 
appointment of senior staff by protected characteristics as a key equality 
performance indicator 

 
 
10. ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACT 
 
10.1 No issues arising 
 
 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
11.1 No issues arising 

 
 

12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS/PROPOSED DECISION 
 
12.1  The report is for noting and it is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011  

 
 

13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
13.1  As this is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 there are not other options 

 
 

14.  DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 WILL THE SUBJECT OF THE REPORT INVOLVE THE PROCESSING  

OF ‘PERSONAL DATA’? 
 
NO  
 
 

14.2  HAS A DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT (DPIA) BEEN 
COMPLETED? 
 
NO - not required for the purpsoes of this report  
 
  

 
CONTACT OFFICER:   
 
Dean Shoesmith, Interim Chief People Officer, email 
Dean.Shoesmith@Croydon.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 
 
Appendix 1 - Croydon Pay Policy Statement 2022/23 

Page 3



  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
There are no unpublished papers on which this report has been based. 

Page 4



 

Croydon Council    
 

Pay Policy Statement 2022-23 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. The Council aims to ensure that its remuneration packages are fair, equitable 

and transparent and offer suitable reward for the employment of high quality 
staff with the necessary skills and experience to deliver high quality services.   

1.2. This Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy relating to the pay of its 
workforce (excluding school-based employees) as required under the Localism 
Act 2011.  The Localism Act requires the Council to have considered, approved 
and published a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.   

1.3. Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the 
“power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the 
authority thinks fit”.   In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act, this Pay 
Policy Statement sets out the Council’s policy for 2022/23 on: 
• The remuneration of its senior staff designated  Chief Officers 
• The remuneration of its lowest paid employees 
• The relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers and the 

remuneration of staff who are not Chief Officers 

1.4 Where this policy refers to Chief Officers, this means the Chief Executive, 
Corporate Directors, and Directors. Where the policy refers to the Council’s 
lowest-paid employees this means those that are paid on the lowest established 
grade and scale point i.e. Grade 1, point 2. This definition of lowest-paid 
employees has been adopted because it reflects the lowest salary payable under 
the Council’s job evaluation scheme and grading structure. 

1.4.1 The Council in November 2021 introduced a new JNC pay scale for Chief 
Officers, excluding the Chief Executive, in line with new senior 
management structure proposals that was implemented on 1 November 
2021. The new grading structure for Croydon Chief Officers is shown at 
Appendix B.       

1.5 Remuneration in this context is defined widely to include not just pay but also 
charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind, increases in enhancements of 
pension entitlements and termination payments.   

1.6 Following the decision of the Annual Council meeting on 3 June 2014, the 
Appointments Committee has delegated responsibility for approving 
appointments in accordance with the threshold specified in statutory guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State under section 40 of the Localism Act 2011.   
Government guidance is that Full Council takes decisions about remuneration 
packages for new appointments of £100,000 per year, or more, as well as 
severance packages of £100,000, or more. 

Page 5



 

1.7 Once approved, all remuneration paid to officers will comply with this policy for 
the 2022-23 financial year.  The statement will be reviewed in accordance with 
legislation prevailing at the time. 

1.8 In accordance with Part 3 of the Constitution – Responsibilities for Functions the 
Chief Executive’s Scheme of Authorisations provides delegated authority to the 
Director of Human Resources (now titled Chief People Officer) for pay and terms 
and conditions for staff other than the Chief Executive and senior staff covered by 
the Joint National Council for Chief Officers.  Grading and conditions of service 
for senior staff are approved by the Appointments Committee. Reference 
paragraph 4.2.8 and 4.2.9 of Part 3 of the Constitution Responsibilities for 
Functions – see extracts below: 

“…..the Chief Executive’s delegation is subject to:  

4.2.8 “the approval of the Director of Human Resources (now titled Chief 
PeopleOfficer) to the grading and conditions of service of staff (other 
than those based in schools or subject to the conditions of service of the 
Chief Officers and Chief Executives J.N.C (Joint National Council for 
Chief Officers’ conditions of service) 

4.2.9 the approval of the Appointments Committee to grading and conditions of 
service of staff employed subject to the conditions of service of the Chief 
Officers and Chief Executives J.N.C” 

1.9  Subject to circumstances, it may be necessary to amend this Pay Policy 
statement during the financial year. Any changes, or amendments, made will be 
subject to full Council approval.  

2. Pay structure 

2.1. The Council uses a combination of locally and nationally determined pay 
structures for its workforce. 

2.2. The Council will determine the appropriate grade for each job in accordance 
with either the Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) Job Evaluation 
Scheme, or the Hay Job Evaluation Scheme, depending upon the job 
requirements and the level of responsibility of its employees within the 
organisation. The GLPC scheme considers posts graded from Grade 1 to 
Grade 17 and the Hay scheme is used for posts graded Croydon Special Range 
A and B and was used for the introduction and maintenance of the newly 
determined local grades for JNC senior staff; Croydon Chief Officer Grades 1- 5 
were implemented on 1 November 2021.  

a) The pay structures, including basic pay, for the Chief Executive and Head of 
Paid Service, Corporate Directors, Directors and posts at Croydon Special 
Range (CSR) level are determined locally. Noting, this was the case for the 
Croydon Chief Officer Grades implemented during the 2021/2022 financial 
year. 

b) The basic pay for teachers, lecturer, youth workers and Soulbury staff is in 
accordance with nationally negotiated pay structures.    

Page 6



 

c) To reflect market and industry specific factors, staff in the in-house bailiff 
service have locally determined pay arrangements which includes an element 
of performance pay. Social Workers and social work managers in children’s 
social care services receive recruitment and retention payments to reflect key 
skills shortages in this sector. 

d) For the majority of other staff, the Council uses a locally determined grading 
structure aligned to the relevant London pay spine of the Greater London 
Provincial Council. 

2.3. Pay allowances, other than basic pay, are the subject of local or nationally 
negotiated rates having been determined from time to time in accordance with 
the collective bargaining arrangements and/or as determined by the Council.  

2.4. Other than for the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, Corporate 
Directors and Directors, the Council adheres to national pay bargaining and will 
normally apply a nationally negotiated cost of living pay award for staff covered 
by the relevant negotiating body and any increase will be payable with effect 
either from 1 April for NJC and or 1 September (for Soulbury, Youth and 
Centrally Appointed Teachers).  

2.4.1 With the introduction of the Croydon Chief Officer Grades during 
2021/22 financial year, with the exception of the Chief Executive and 
Head of Paid Service, the Council will reflect the JNC pay award 
payable from 1st April, in accordance with national pay bargaining for 
those paid on those grades.  

2.5. Employees who have joined the Council as a result of a Transfer of 
Undertakings Protection of Employment (TUPE) transfer may have different 
arrangements. In accordance with TUPE the Council will comply with any such 
contractual arrangements in relation to the pay for such employees.   Should 
conditions arise which support a business case for staff to be offered an 
opportunity to move to Council terms and conditions this will be considered in 
accordance with legal obligations.  

3. Remuneration  

3.1. For the purpose of this pay policy statement, Chief Officers include:  

a) The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service; Executive Directors; 
Directors;   

3.2. Current remuneration for Chief Officers is set out below: - 

a) The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service is to be paid a spot salary 
of £192,474,  The salary, is subject to review every two years and is next 
due to be reviewed in April 2023 

b) Executive Directors and Directors are paid salaries as set out in Appendix 
B, with provision for annual incremental progression.  Salaries are subject 
to review every year.  

Page 7



 

c) During 2021/22 a new pay range for Croydon Chief Officer Grades was 
introduced in line with the senior management structure. This included 
new Corporate Director roles and Director posts. These roles were placed 
on a grade and salary within the Croydon Chief Officer Grades 1-5, 
following evaluation of their post using the Hay job evaluation scheme with 
provision for incremental progression to the top spinal point of the grade. 
Salaries will be reviewed in line with national awards, as determined by 
the JNC for Local Authority Chief Executives and Chief Officers.  

3.3 For the purposes of this pay statement, posts defined as deputy chief officers are 
those paid on Croydon Special Range grades who report to Directors, and 
include:- 

a) Heads of Service and certain senior staff in posts above grade 17 but 
below Chief Officer. These posts are placed on a salary within Croydon 
Special Range A and B following evaluation using the Hay job evaluation 
scheme with provision for incremental progression to the top spinal point 
of the grade. Salaries are reviewed in line with national joint council pay 
awards. 

The grades and salary structures for Chief Officers and Croydon Special Range A 
and B are shown in Appendix A. 

Grades are shown in Appendix B 

3.4 The pay of the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service is determined on 
appointment with reference to market rates. In establishing market rates, the 
Council will compare remuneration data from other comparable local authorities.  
This allows closer benchmarking, where possible, to take account of factors such 
as population size, social demographics, budgetary responsibilities, economic 
and regeneration activity.  

Additional remuneration elements 

3.5 The Council does not apply any bonuses or performance payments to its senior 
staff.  In addition to basic pay, elements of “additional pay”, other than those that 
constitute re-imbursement of expenses incurred during the fulfilment of duties, 
are set out below: 

a) In order to recruit or retain employees in a post at its designated grade or 
spot point consideration will be given to  the use of market supplements as 
approved by the Chief People Officer and Chief Executive with such 
payments being subject to periodic review.  Market supplements will, when 
added to basic pay, not normally exceed 10% of base pay but by formal 
exception may be up to 20% of base pay.  Any market supplement for the 
Chief Executive and Chief Officers will be recommended by the Chief 
People Officer and Chief Executive and determined by the Appointments 
Committee.  

b) A compulsory car allowance may be made to authorised car users at all 
levels of the workforce, other than to Chief Officers.  The compulsory car 
allowance applies to employees where driving a car is an integral feature of 

Page 8



 

the employee’s job duties and the employee is unable to carry out their 
duties without providing and using their own car.  The amount of the 
allowance depends on the engine size and emissions of the employee’s car 
as shown in Appendix C.  

c) Returning Officer fees: the Council is required by the Representation of 
the People Act 1983 to appoint an officer to act as the Electoral 
Registration Officer (ERO) for any constituency or part of a constituency 
within its area to be responsible for the preparation and maintenance of 
the electoral register and to act as the Returning Officer (RO) for all 
elections.  Such duties attract a fee payable to the individual, paid for by 
the Government except in relation to local elections. The fees are set by 
central government for national elections and referenda and for local 
elections fees are prescribed by and agreed on an annual basis by the 
Chief Executives’ London Committee, which reports into the London 
Councils network. The Council’s Electoral Registration Officer and 
Returning Officer is the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, as 
agreed by resolution of the Council or as delegated to a committee.  

In their capacity as the Council’s Electoral Registration Officer and the 
Council’s Returning Officer, the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service 
may appoint deputy Electoral Registration Officers and a deputy Returning 
Officer.  Fees for carrying out such duties are payable to appointed 
individuals. 

d) From time to time consideration will be given to making additional 
payments, as approved by the Chief People Officer, to senior staff  who 
undertake additional and/or higher level responsibilities for example when 
covering the duties of a vacant Chief Officer post.  Such payments are 
temporary and subject to periodic review.  

Remuneration on appointment 

3.6 Where employees are appointed to a grade, it is the Council’s policy to appoint 
all employees on the bottom spinal point of the grade, unless there are 
exceptional circumstances as authorised by the relevant Director and approved 
by the Chief People Offcier, or in the case of  senior staff, the Appointments 
Committee.   

3.7  In exceptional circumstances, and subject to approval of the Chief People Officer, 
where it is necessary for a newly appointed employee to relocate and move 
home to take up appointment a contribution towards certain relocation expenses 
may be made.   A copy of the scheme, is attached as Appendix D. 

3.8  Appointments to Chief Officer posts will be made within the grade and salaries 
stated for the respective post as set out in Appendix B.  

 

 

 

Page 9



 

Redundancy payments and payments on leaving and the Restriction of Public 
Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020  

3.9  The Council has a single redundancy scheme which applies to all employees 
including Chief Officers (see Appendix D).  The Council does not make any other 
payments to employees on termination of their employment other than those, 
where there is a statutory, or contractual, requirement to do so, such as payment 
for accrued and untaken annual leave. 

3.10 Subject to paragraph 1.6 above, in exceptional circumstances other severance 
payments may be made subject to agreement of the Chief Executive and Head of 
Paid Service and the Chief People Officer, and as allowed for in the Council’s 
scheme of delegation. Such payment will take account of the Council’s 
contractual and legal obligations, the Council’s reputation, and whether the  
payment would have the effect of improving the Council’s financial situation.  

3.11   On 4th November 2020, the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments 
Regulations 2020 but were subsequently revoked pending further Government 
consultation and review. The Regulations had placed a £95,000 cap on public 
sector exit payments in connection with people leaving employment or vacating 
office. The £95,000 cap had applied to redundancy payments (whether 
compulsory or voluntary) (including statutory and contractual redundancy 
payments) and, significantly also covered, pension strain costs, which arise when 
a Local Government Pension Scheme pension is paid unreduced before a 
member’s normal pension age.   

3.12 The Government also issued Guidance which states at paragraph 3.2: ‘In light of 
the withdrawal of the Public Sector Exit Payment Regulations, employers are 
encouraged to pay to any former employees who had an exit date between 4th 
November 2020 and 12th February 2021 and to whom the cap was applied, the 
additional sums that would have paid but for the cap. Given that the cap has now 
been disapplied, it is open to employers to do so and HM Treasury’s expectation 
is that they will do so.’ The Council will therefore continue to comply with the Exit 
Payment Cap Directions 2021 and Guidance.   

3.13 It is noted that the Guidance at paragraph 1.5 states that ‘HM Treasury will bring 
forward proposals at pace to tackle unjustified exit payments’, therefore, it may 
be necessary to amend this Pay Policy Statement and the Pensions Discretion 
Statement in 2022, should any further changes to the law be made.     

Re-employment of officers previously made redundant and retirement 

3.14 Where an officer who has previously been made redundant from the Council 
applies for employment with the Council, their application will be treated on its 
own merits, the financial merits and wider interests of the Council and will have 
regard to any agreement under which the officer left their previous employment.  
Where an officer leaves the Council’s employment through voluntary severance 
or voluntary redundancy arrangements, they will not be allowed to work for the 
Council in any capacity, including engagement via employment agencies, or as a 
consultant, for a period of at least one year after leaving.   

 

Page 10



 

3.15 The Council permits flexible retirement, as permitted by the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations, where by an employee can receive a salary and 
be in receipt of a pension for doing the same job.  Flexible retirement will usually 
only be agreed where there is no cost to the Council. Exceptions to this will be 
based on the best interest of the Council and will be agreed by the Corporate 
Director of Resources in consultation with the Chief People Officer, except where 
such a decision relates to either of themselves, when the Chief Executive will be 
consulted.  Employees retiring before their normal retirement age will, therefore, 
usually receive what is known as an actuarial reduction in their pension as 
allowed for under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations, to reflect 
the financial impact on the pension fund by the employee’s early retirement. 

 
4 Remuneration of lowest paid employees 

4.1 The definition of “lowest paid employee” is for local determination.  The Council 
has agreed that the lowest paid employee will be those workers employed under 
a contract of employment on full-time equivalent hours, in accordance with the 
minimum grade of the Council’s agreed grading structure i.e. Grade 1, scale point 
2. Workers, such as apprentices, who are engaged on fixed term training 
contracts, are excluded from this definition.  

4.2 The Council is a Real Living Wage (formerly the London Living Wage) employer 
and will pay the Real Living Wage as its minimum rate of pay to employees, other 
than those engaged specifically on apprentice or similar training contracts.  The 
Council will apply increases in the Real Living Wage with effect from the 1st April 
following announcement of the increase.  With effect from 1st  April 2022 the full-
time equivalent annual pay of the lowest paid employee will be £21,030 which 
equates to an hourly rate of pay of £11.20 (this reflects the current Real Living 
Wage London which is £11.05 per hour from 1/4/22 - noting this rate remains 
below Croydon’s lowest annual payment of £21,030 and hourly rate of £11.20).  

5 The relationship between the pay of Chief Officers and that of other staff 

5.1 The Council does not set the pay of individuals or groups of individuals by 
reference to a simple multiple of the pay of another individual or group.   The use 
of simple pay multiples cannot capture the complexities and dynamics of a highly 
varied workforce.  The Council sets pay as outlined above by reference to the 
evaluated level of responsibilities of the post or at a rate determined by a national 
pay body. 

5.2 Guidance produced under section 40 of the Localism Act recommends that a pay 
multiple is included in these statements as a way of illustrating the Council’s 
approach to pay dispersion and the Council has decided to publish its pay multiples 
to aid transparency and future benchmarking: 

• The multiple for 2022-23 between the lowest paid employee and the chief 
executive and head of paid service is a ratio of 1:9 

• The multiple between the lowest paid employee and the median chief officer 
is a ratio of 1:59    

• The multiple between the median pay and the chief executive and head of 
paid service’s pay is a ratio of 1:35 

Page 11



 

• The multiple between the median pay and the average chief officers’ pay is a 
ratio of 1:47 

5.3 As part of its overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay, both 
within and outside the sector, the Council will use available benchmarking 
information as appropriate. 

6 Non-permanent staffing resources 

6.1 To maintain flexibility in delivering services the Council supplements its employee 
workforce with workers who are not Council employees or on the Council payroll.  
This non-permanent resource includes consultants, who are procured under a 
Contract for (Consultancy) Services, and interims who are procured through the 
Council’s managed service provider (the Local Government Recruitment 
Partnership) or other approved third party providers including through the 
Council’s master vendor framework.  

6.2 In managing its non-permanent staffing resource, the Council seeks to ensure 
that: the Council, and the wider public sector, achieve value for money; tax and 
national insurance liabilities are managed appropriately; and contractual 
relationships between the Council, workers and third parties are properly reflected.  
In this regard, it is the Council’s policy not to engage directly with self- employed 
individuals, or wholly owned one person limited companies in all but the rarest of 
exceptions.   Where such arrangements are used, the Council seeks to limit them 
to a maximum duration of 24 months.    

6.3 Where it is necessary to engage a worker at Tier 1 or Tier 2 temporarily as an 
interim or consultant, the remuneration paid to the individual will generally fall 
within the following rates however, wherever possible, the council will seek to 
appoint to a fixed- term contract within the grade ranges shown in Appendix B.  
The higher rates of pay shown immediately below, compared to those paid to 
directly employed staff, are in recompense of interims and consultants not 
receiving all of the same conditions of employment, most notably regarding leave, 
pension, redundancy and notice. 

Grade of post Day rate range  £ 
(payable to the individual) 

Croydon Special Range  £400 - £525 
Director £525 - £775 
Corporate Director  £775 - £900 
Chief Executive £1,200 - £1,500 

6.4 Workers engaged directly by the Council will be assessed to establish whether 
they fall within the scope of the IR35 legislation using the HMRC employment 
status tool. Workers who fall within scope will have Income Tax and National 
Insurance Contributions deducted and paid over to HMRC.  

7 Publication 

7.1 Upon approval by the full Council this statement will be published on the Council’s 
website.  In addition, the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts will include a 
note setting out the remuneration paid to each member of the corporate 
management team (the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service and those 

Page 12



 

reporting directly to her) including the total amount paid to each individual by way 
of: salary, including fees and allowances; performance related pay; expense 
allowances; compensation for loss of office; benefits in kind and employers 
pension contributions.  The Annual Statement of Accounts is published on the 
Council’s website. 

7.2 The Annual Statement of Accounts will also report on termination payments for all 
employees in keeping with international financial reporting standards.  This will 
show the number of termination payments, within specific financial bands, made to 
employees during the year. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
Pay structure for Chief Officers   
 
Chief Officers: 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 
(Note: national pay award for 1/4/2021 remains pending national negotiations)) 
 
Post Salary 
Chief Executive £192,474 (spot) 
Corporate Director of Resources (Monitoring Officer) , 
Corporate Director of Sustainable Communities, 
Regeneration and Economic Recovery 
Corporate Director of Children, Young People and 
Education   Corporate Director Adult Social Care and 
Health 
Corporate Director Housing 

£141,965 - 
£150,547 

Assistant Chief Executive £134,750 - 
£140,194 

Chief Digital Officer, and Resident's Services 
Director of Public Health  
Director of Adult Care Operations 
Director of Children's Social Care 
Director of Planning and Regeneration 

£115,000 - 
£119,646 

Director of Adult Social Care Improvement 
Director of Education  
Director of Housing - Resident Engagement & Allocations 
Director of Housing - Estates and Improvement 
Director of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
Director of Commercial Investment and Capital 
Director of Finance 
Director of Sustainable Communities 
Director of Quality, Commissioing and Performance 
Improvement  

£104,902 - 
£109,140 

Director of Policy, Programmes & Performance 
Director of Culture & Community Safety 
Chief People Officer (under review)  
Director of Service Quality, Improvement & Inclusion (under 
review) 

£94,986 - £98,834 

 
 

Croydon Special Range 1 April 2022 to March 2023  
 

    
Grade Scp Salary *     

Croydon 
Special 

Range A       

1 £65,589  
 

  
2 £67,744    
3 £72,053    

Croydon 
Special 

Range B       

4 £82,703    
5 £85,339     
6 £87,968     

 
* as at 2021/22 rates cost of living NJC national pay award for 2022/23 yet to be 
negotiated 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 
Croydon Chief Officer Grades 2022/23 
 
CCOG Grade Minimum Mid-point Maximum 
Director  
 

Grade I £94,986 £96,896 £98,834 

Director  
 

Grade 2 £104,902 £107,000 £109,140 

Director  
 

Grade 3 £115,000 £117,300 £119,646 

Corporate 
Director  

Grade 4 £134,750 £137,445 £140,194 

Corporate 
Director  

Grade 5 £141,965 £144,804 £150,547 

 
* as at 2020/21 rates, cost of living JNC national pay award for 2021/22 yet to be 
negotiated 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 
 
Car allowances and mileage payments 
 
Car Mileage Rates 
 
From 1 April 2011 the compulsory car allowance and mileage rates for higher engine 
banding payments are only to be paid to employees whose vehicles fall within the 
DVLA bandings A-E for CO2 emissions.  Employees whose vehicles fall outside these 
DVLA bandings will be restricted to the payments for the lower engine size banding, 
irrespective of the size of their vehicle’s engine.  
 

 451 - 999cc 1000 - 
1199cc 

1200 - 
1450cc 

Compulsory car users  Only payable for cars within DVLA 
bandings A-E for CO2 emissions 

Lump sum per annum £846 £963 £1,239 
per mile first 8,500 36.9p 40.9p 50.5p 
per mile after 8,500 13.7p 14.4p 16.4p 

 
 
 

 451 - 999cc 1000 - 
1199cc 

1200 - 
1450cc 

Casual users  Only payable for cars within DVLA 
bandings A-E for CO2 emissions 

per mile first 8,500 46.9p 52.2p 65.0p 

per mile after 8,500 13.7p 14.4p 16.4p 
 

 
Motorcycle Rate 

This will be paid in accordance with the HMRC approved amount which is 24p per 
mile. 
 
Bicycle Rate 

This will be paid in accordance with the HMRC approved amount which is 20p per 
mile. 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Appendix D 

CROYDON COUNCIL 
 

RELOCATION SCHEME 
 
 Introduction  
 
These guidelines may be used to overcome a skills shortage or as a recruitment and 
retention tool. The Council’s approach to attracting, recruiting, developing and 
retaining talent sometimes needs to be supported to enable the placement of 
someone with known abilities and expertise into a specific role.  
 
The decision to apply this scheme should be agreed before an offer of employment 
has been accepted and should preferably be displayed in the job advertisement.  An 
“in principle” offer of assistance, subject to meeting the requirements of the scheme, 
must be contained in the offer of employment letter. An offer of a relocation package 
cannot be made after employment commences.  
  
There is no automatic entitlement to help with relocation or the amount paid. 
Payment is subject to approval in all cases by the relevant tier 1 manager, 
production of receipts and the amount of budget available within the service. No 
central relocation budget exists, so payments must be made from the relevant 
department’s own budget.  
 
Relocation assistance will not exceed £8,000, will not normally be provided to 
employees already employed by the Council (including those on fixed term or 
temporary contracts) and can be paid once only. Any subsequent moves will not 
attract a payment. 
 
 
Eligibility  
 
 The following criteria must be met to be eligible for a relocation payment;  
 

• The applicant is lives more than 90 minutes travelling distance away from the 
new workplace and is relocating to a location within that limit.  

• all owners or joint owners of the residence are moving, if claiming fees 
connected with the sale and purchase of a property  

• the applicant is  moving within 6 months of starting their employment with the 
Council 

• the applicant is not benefiting from relocation assistance from another source 
(e.g. their partner’s employer) 

• the applicant is moving to work  solely for Croydon 
 
Conditions  
 
The recipient must sign an agreement to remain in Croydon Council’s employment 
for a minimum of three years. If they leave voluntarily or are dismissed on grounds of 

Page 21



misconduct or capability within three years, repayment will be due, charged at 1/36 
of the total amount of expenses paid per uncompleted month of service.  
 
Two quotes must be obtained for removal and storage expenses for which the lower 
amount may be reimbursed. Records of payments made will be recorded on the 
employee’s personal file and retained by the manager who signs the agreement.   
 
The employee is responsible for:  
 

• taking steps to sell their property (if applicable) and obtaining accommodation 
within reasonable travelling distance (90 minutes) within 6 months of their 
start date with Croydon Council. 
 

• seeking approval for any relocation expenses prior to incurring the expense. 
 

• signing the three year agreement  
 
• providing a full breakdown of costs and comprehensive receipts for all 

expenses claimed for under the scheme.  Bank statements or credit card 
receipts cannot be accepted. 

 
• providing at least two quotes if claiming for removal expenses.  

   
The manager is responsible for: 
 

• obtaining approval of the Chief People Officer and their Director and the 
correct financial authorisation (including departmental expenditure panel if 
relevant), before offering a relocation package 

 
• subject to the eligibility criteria, informing the successful candidate of the  

relocation scheme when offering the appointment  
 

• ensuring that finances are available to fund a relocation package  
 

• agreeing with the employee the types of expenses they are able to cover  
            and the maximum amount to be paid  
 

• reviewing the situation if positive steps are not being taken by the  
     candidate/employee to sell and/or buy a new property within 6 months  
     of starting their employment. 

 
• ensuring an agreement is signed by the employee and storing a copy on their 

personal HR file  
 

• keeping a copy of the agreement, a full breakdown of costs, receipts  
            and quotes.  
 

Page 22



• arranging for payment(s) to be paid into the employee’s bank account before 
the end of the tax year following their appointment date and that taxable 
payments are paid via Payroll  
  

• ensuring that records of all payments are kept on the employee’s personal HR 
file 
 

• arranging the recovery of expenses if the employee leaves within three  
years, including writing to them to confirm the outstanding amount due and 
informing them if it will be taken out of their final salary or pension 
contributions.  
 

Tax  
 
Relocation expenses up to £8,000 per move are currently tax free as long as they 
are provided by the employer before the end of the tax year following the date of 
appointment (including VAT on expenses), but some payments are taxable. The 
following expenses may or may not be included in the agreed package.  
 

• Payment for rent where it is necessary to temporarily maintain two homes , 
up to a maximum of 6 months* 

• Travelling costs where two homes are temporarily maintained, up to a 
maximum of 6 months  (either standard class train fares or casual car user 
mileage rates)  

• Legal and Estate Agents fees connected with the sale and purchase of 
property  

• Removal and storage of household furniture and effects  
• Disconnection and reconnection of utilities* 
• Reinstallation of domestic appliances such as cookers and washing 

machines* 
• Charges incurred for ending a rental agreement early * 
• Deposit for rented accommodation * 
• Two days paid removal leave in addition to normal leave entitlement* 
• Refund of unexpired season tickets* 
• Shipping costs, if moving from abroad 
• Survey Fees*  
• Unplanned costs such as school uniforms, carpets, curtains, * 
• Redirection of mail* 

 
 

     *subject to tax and NI contributions   
 

As the tax position may change, it is advisable to check with the HMRC before 
finalising any arrangements under this guidance.   
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E 
 
EARLY RETIREMENT & REDUNDANCY SCHEME 

(incl. Efficiency of the Service) 
  

Council approved 1981.   
Amended by Corporate Services Committee on 11 October 2006; effective 
from 1st December 2006 
Amended 010410:  legislative changes 
Amended 010411: Employee Based Cost Review (EBCR) 
 
 

1. SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF SCHEME 
 
1.1. This scheme is without prejudice to the Council’s and the trade unions’ general 

policy of opposition to redundancies.  It outlines the approach the Council may 
use when making staffing reductions through redundancy, early retirement on 
the grounds of redundancy, and early retirement on the grounds of efficiency 
of the service.   

 
1.2. The scheme covers all categories of staff except teachers and lecturers for 

whom a separate scheme exists. 
 
1.3. The scheme sets out the normal level of payments made to employees.  

Certain payments in the scheme are enhanced by the Council exercising its 
discretion, as allowed for in legislation.   The exercise of the Council’s 
discretion is subject to a decision in each case, and the Council reserves the 
right to apply different payments in particular cases.  The Council also 
reserves the right to withdraw or suspend the scheme at any time. 

 
2. GENERAL 
 
2.1. Where redundancies as defined in the Employment Rights Act 1996 are 

contemplated the Council may choose to seek volunteers for early retirement 
or redundancy from the staff.  Should the number of volunteers for early 
retirement or redundancy exceed the required number of post reductions the 
Council will consult staff representatives about the method of selection. 

 
3. EARLY RETIREMENT BY REASON OF REDUNDANCY  

(only for employees aged 55 and over) 
 

3.1. Employees aged 55 or more who are made redundant (including those who 
volunteer under paragraph 2.1) will be eligible for immediate payment of 
pension benefits if they have 2 or more years membership in the LGPS (or 
have less than 2 years membership, but have had a transfer of pension rights 
into the LGPS from another source). 

 

Page 25



3.2. In addition to immediate payment of pension benefits, employees with 2 years 
continuous service will also be entitled to a redundancy payment.  The 
redundancy payment will be calculated as set out in section 4.   

 
3.3. The granting of any augmentation in respect of redundancy and early 

retirement in the interests of the efficiency of the service is at the Council’s 
discretion.to compensate officers for the loss of position and future 
expectations as a result of the Council’s actions.  It is not in respect of past 
service, which is covered by pension entitlement arising from contributions 
made into the Pension Fund. 

 
3.4. The costs of the early payment of benefits are charged to departmental 

budgets rather than the Pension Fund. 
 
 
4. REDUNDANCY 

4.1. Employees who are made redundant will receive a redundancy payment 
based on length of continuous service and age as laid down in the 
Employment Rights Act.   The details of the statutory redundancy payments 
vary with age and length of service and a ready reckoner is set out in 
Appendix 1.   

4.2.  Continuous local government service (and certain related service) will be 
used where this exceeds service with the London Borough of Croydon and in 
calculating the redundancy payment the weekly pay used for calculating 
redundancy payments will be as follows: 
a) In cases of compulsory redundancy, by reducing by 50% the amount by 

which an employee’s actual weekly pay exceeds the statutory cap e.g. 
with the statutory cap at £400 and an employee’s actual weekly pay at 
£500, redundancy pay would be calculated on a revised weekly pay of 
£450. 

b) In cases of voluntary redundancy, by reducing by 25% the amount by 
which an employee’s weekly pay exceeds the statutory cap e.g. with the 
statutory cap at £400 and an employee’s actual weekly pay at £500, 
redundancy pay would be calculated on a revised weekly pay of £475. 

 
5. EARLY RETIREMENT IN THE INTERESTS OF THE EFFICIENCY OF THE 

SERVICE 
 
5.1. The Council will consider applications from staff, supported by their Directors, 

for early retirement on the grounds of the efficiency of the service.  Each case 
will be decided on its merits by the Corporate Director Resources (Section 
151 Officer) in consultation with the Chief People Officer and the relevant 
departmental Director.  They will use their discretion based on the following 
criteria: 

 
(a) staff suffering ill-health of a nature not covered by the ill-health provisions 

of the Pension scheme 

Page 26



(b) a change in the organisation of an establishment or department which does 
not give rise to redundancy 

(c) staff who are unable to meet the changed requirements of their post 
 

5.2. Employees aged 55 or over, who retire on the grounds of efficiency of the 
service are eligible for immediate payment of pension benefits if they have 2 
or more years membership in the LGPS (or have less than 2 years 
membership, but have had a transfer of pension rights into the LGPS from 
another source).  

 
5.3. In these cases there is no entitlement to a redundancy payment. 
 
6. COMPLYING WITH LEGISLATION  
 
6.1   The Council will only apply the above policy in a manner which is compatible 
with the law (inc. legislation, subordinate legislation and case law) and anything in 
this policy which is incompatible with the law shall be disregarded or applied only to 
the extent that doing so would not be contrary to the law as it is understood when the 
policy is applied in any particular case. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

“Ready Reckoner” For Statutory Redundancy Pay 
 

Figures in grid show the number of weeks pay due 
Continuous Service (Years) 

Age 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

181 1                   

19 1 1½                  

20 1 1½ 2                 

21 1 1½ 2 2½                

22 1 1½ 2 2½ 3               

23 1½ 2 2½ 3 3½ 4              

24 2 2½ 3 3½ 4 4½ 5             

25 2 3 3½ 4 4½ 5 5½ 6            

26 2 3 4 4½ 5 5½ 6 6½ 7           

27 2 3 4 5 5½ 6 6½ 7 7½ 8          

28 2 3 4 5 6 6½ 7 7½ 8 8½ 9         

29 2 3 4 5 6 7 7½ 8 8½ 9 9½ 10        

30 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8½ 9 9½ 10 10½ 11       

31 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 9½ 10 10½ 11 11½ 12      

32 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 10½ 11 11½ 12 12½ 13     

33 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11½ 12 12½ 13 13½ 14    

34 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12½ 13 13½ 14 14½ 15   

35 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 13½ 14 14½ 15 15½ 16  

36 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 14½ 15 15½ 16 16½ 17 

37 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15½ 16 16½ 17 17½ 

38 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 16½ 17 17½ 18 

39 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 17½ 18 18½ 

40 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 18½ 19 

41 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 19½ 

 
1 It is possible that an individual could start to build up continuous service before age 16, but this is likely to 
be rare, and therefore the table starts  from age 18. 

Appendix 1 
 

Page 29



 

Continuous Service (Years) 

Age 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

42 2½ 3½ 4½ 5½ 6½ 7½ 8½ 9½ 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 

43 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

44 3 4½ 5½ 6½ 7½ 8½ 9½ 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 

45 3 4½ 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

46 3 4½ 6 7½ 8½ 9½ 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 

47 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

48 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 11½ 12½ 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 

49 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

50 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 14½ 15½ 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 24½ 

51 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

52 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 17½ 18½ 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 24½ 25½ 

53 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

54 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 20½ 21½ 22½ 23½ 24½ 25½ 26½ 

55 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

56 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 23½ 24½ 25½ 26½ 27½ 

57 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25 26 27 28 

58 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 26½ 27½ 28½ 

59 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 27 28 29 

60 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 27 28½ 29½ 

61* 3 4½ 6 7½ 9 10½ 12 13½ 15 16½ 18 19½ 21 22½ 24 25½ 27 28½ 30 
* The same figures should be used when calculating the redundancy payment for a person 
aged 61 and above. 
 
Notes: 
Statutory redundancy payments are based on length of continuous service (up to max of 
20 yrs) and age as follows: 
- for each completed year of service up to age 21 inclusive: half a week’s pay 
- for each completed year of service from age 22-40 inclusive: one week’s pay. 
- for each completed year of service from age 41 inclusive: one and a half week’s pay. 
 

Page 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Pay Policy Statement 2022/23
	04 Appendix 1 - Croydon Council Pay Policy Statement - 2022-23
	04 Appendix 1a - Pay structure for Chief Officers
	04 Appendix 1B - Croydon Chief Officer Grades 2022-23
	04 Appendix 1C - Car allowances and mileage payments
	04 Appendix 1D - Relocation Scheme
	04 Appendix 1E - Early Retirement & Redundancy Scheme
	04 Appendix 1.1 - “Ready Reckoner” For Statutory Redundancy Pay

	6 Extension of Temporary Chief Officer Appointments

